
Mason County Planning & Zoning Department 
102 E. FIFTH STREET 

SCOTTVILLE, MICHIGAN 49454 

(231) 757-9272 •  FAX (231) 757-9253 

 

 

January 16, 2018 1 

 2 

Minutes of the Mason County Planning Commission meeting held at 102 E. Fifth St., 3 

Scottville, January 16, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. 4 

 5 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Michael Shaw, Tom Hooper, Cary Shineldecker, Doug 6 

Robidoux, Janet Andersen, Jim Wincek, Frank Redmond  7 

 8 

MEMBERS ABSENT:   None 9 

 10 

OTHERS PRESENT: Mary Reilly, Cayla Christmas, Fabian Knizacky 11 

       12 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mary Reilly. 13 

 14 

Mary Reilly opened nominations for Chairman. 15 

 16 

Janet Andersen nominated Jim Wincek for Chairman. Mr. Wincek accepted the 17 

nomination.  Jim Wincek was elected Chairman for 2018, 6 yes 0 no. 18 

 19 

Mary Reilly turned the meeting over to Jim Wincek. 20 

 21 

Jim Wincek opened nominations for Vice Chairman. 22 

 23 

Cary Shineldecker nominated Mike Shaw for Vice Chairman. Mr. Shaw accepted the 24 

nomination. Mike Shaw was elected Vice Chairman for 2018, 6 yes 0 no. 25 

 26 

Jim Wincek opened nominations for Secretary. 27 

 28 

Janet Andersen nominated Frank Redmond for Secretary. Frank Redmond accepted 29 

the nomination. Frank Redmond was elected Secretary for 2018, 6 yes 0 no. 30 

 31 

Planning Commission Officers 2018: 32 

Jim Wincek - Chairman 33 

Mike Shaw – Vice Chairman 34 

Frank Redmond – Secretary 35 

 36 

Doug Robidoux made a motion to approve the minutes of the November 28, 2017 37 

special meeting as written.  Second by Frank Redmond.  Motion carried, 7 Yes 0 No. 38 

 39 

Janet Andersen made a motion to approve the minutes of the November 28, 2017 40 

meeting as written.  Second by Tom Hooper.  Motion carried, 7 yes 0 no. 41 

 42 

Doug Robidoux made a motion to approve the minutes of the December 5, 2017 43 

meeting as amended. Second by Janet Andersen.  Motion carried, 7 yes 0 no. 44 

 45 



 2

Addition or deletions to the agenda:  None 1 

 2 

Conflict of Interest: None 3 

 4 

Jim Wincek opened public comment. 5 

 6 

Evelyn Bergaila would like the draft of the text amendment to be made easily available 7 

on the County web page before going to the public hearing.   8 

 9 

Mary Reilly stated she would make that information available online. 10 

 11 

Correspondence:  None 12 

 13 

Applications: None 14 

 15 

Unfinished Business: Mary Reilly stated the ordinance update went before the 16 

Buildings, Planning, Drains, and Airport (BPDA) sub committee. The purpose of this 17 

meeting was to review their feedback and decide if any additional amendments were 18 

needed before going to public hearing. Many of the amendments were agreed to. The 19 

language regarding electronic signs and the replacement of dwellings less than 24-feet 20 

wide was sent back to the Planning Commission (PC) for reconsideration.  21 

 22 

Janet Andersen clarified several inaccuracies in the BDPA draft meeting minutes. She 23 

clarified several points related to signs and electronic signs. She stated the sub 24 

committee had concerns regarding the enforcement and monitoring of the electronic 25 

signs and not regarding monitoring near driveways [as stated in the minutes]. Ms. 26 

Andersen clarified other language in the minutes relating to zero-lot lines and building 27 

grades.  28 

 29 

Mary Reilly clarified zoning does not regulate flashing speed signs set out by MDOT 30 

and the Road Commission, as stated in the BPDA draft minutes.  31 

 32 

Doug Robidoux stated the PC gathered information for the zoning amendments and has 33 

the role of making sure proposals are within the law. Mr. Robidoux asked if they could 34 

send proposals to the full board without recommendations from the subcommittee.  35 

 36 

Fabian Knizacky stated the PC could say they took the input from the subcommittee 37 

and then send it to the full Board of Commissioners (BOC) 38 

 39 

Doug Robidoux added the BOC could approve, deny, or modify the proposed language.  40 

Fabian Knizacky agreed.  41 

 42 

Tom Hooper stated the PC did what was asked of them to come up with language 43 

regarding single-wide replacement and electronic signs. Mr. Hooper said he thought the 44 

text amendments should go to a public hearing and then to the full BOC. 45 

 46 

Mr. Wincek stated they could take what they currently have to public hearing to see 47 



 3

what the public thinks and then make necessary changes before taking the proposal to 1 

the BOC. 2 

 3 

Janet Andersen stated there are issues with the enforcement of building codes and 4 

other issues that go along with allowing the replacement of single wide mobile homes 5 

(SWMH). She stated SWMHs decrease property values. There are 171 SWMHs in 6 

Victory Township and a majority of them are rental units.  She said it is unlikely that the 7 

elderly are going to change out their homes. A landlord that rents a SWMH would be 8 

most likely to benefit from this policy.  Habitat for Humanity and FiveCAP won’t repair or 9 

winterize a SWMH and Lowe’s can’t do install work because of structural concerns.  10 

 11 

Janet Andersen noted that electronic signs cause driver distraction. Ms. Andersen 12 

stated reading an electronic sign while driving is comparable to looking at a cell phone. 13 

She stated studies show a sign needs to change within 3 seconds to catch attention and 14 

a business owner is going to want to use animation but the ordinance won’t allow it. She 15 

stated they can’t enforce the restrictions. Ms. Andersen stated there is a driveway every 16 

50’ along US-10, and there are already many accidents without adding these signs. 17 

 18 

Tom Hooper said that he spoke with business people in the area who know there will be 19 

limitations on electronic signs. Mr. Hooper stated “they thought that would still be better 20 

than what they currently have”. Mr. Hooper stated a banner and billboard are not as 21 

easy to read as electronic signs. He added that nothing can be enforced without a 22 

police force.  23 

 24 

Tom Hooper stated the language for replacement SWMHs started with the idea that if 25 

something happens (i.e. fire, tree falls on house, etc.) the owner currently can’t replace 26 

their home. Mr. Hooper stated a home that is destroyed should be able to be replaced 27 

within the same footprint. “The current language is telling people who can’t afford 28 

double wide mobile homes or new houses we don’t want them.” 29 

 30 

Doug Robidoux stated the proposed language for electronic signs has been “kicked 31 

back” before and the Planning Commission chose to leave it in.  32 

 33 

Fabian Knizacky questioned if the Planning Commission doesn’t take the input from the 34 

subcommittee into consideration, then why ask for their input? 35 

 36 

Cary Shineldecker stated the 9’ parking space amendment was sent back to the 37 

Planning Commission so they kept it at 10’. Mr. Shineldecker referred to the results from 38 

the survey sent out at the beginning of the zoning ordinance update. He noted that 61% 39 

of those that responded were in favor of allowing electronic signs along the US-10 40 

corridor.  41 

 42 

Tom Hooper stated that electronic signs needs to go to public hearing. 43 

 44 

Janet Andersen stated she looked at the survey and speaks to the public. She pointed 45 

out that no business owners have been to a meeting to say they want electronic signs. 46 

 47 



 4

Frank Redmond stated he read an article on a court case where a judge ruled a driver 1 

shall not be legally expected to follow the rules of the road when reading an electronic 2 

sign.  3 

 4 

Mike Shaw stated the brightness chosen is low impact and 12 second intervals reduce 5 

driver distraction. 6 

 7 

Doug Robidoux said he wanted to go through to the public hearing on electronic signs.  8 

He is surprised by the data Ms. Andersen provided on SWMHs.  9 

 10 

Janet Andersen stated that allowing replacement of a SWMH would not be helping the 11 

people they wish to help and safety is a main concern. Ms. Andersen added insurance 12 

companies won’t insure a SWMH and banks won’t loan money for them. 13 

 14 

Jim Wincek stated the issue is the replacement of any dwelling under 24’ wide and not 15 

just mobile homes.  16 

 17 

Doug Robidoux stated he is concerned with the people who own a SWMH and saying 18 

no to them. Mr. Robidoux stated hearing the volume of renters has changed his position 19 

and he would change his vote to not allowing a replacement. 20 

 21 

Mike Shaw and Frank Redmond agreed that they would also change their votes to “no” 22 

after hearing Janet Andersen’s information. 23 

 24 

Cary Shineldecker stated the Planning Commission didn’t think about changing this 25 

language until a couple of the township supervisors came in and presented data good 26 

enough to convince the Planning Commission to propose changing the original 27 

language. Mr. Shineldecker stated they can’t write an ordinance to discriminate against 28 

rentals. Mr. Shineldecker stated he does not want to change his vote. 29 

 30 

Jim Wincek stated he would support not allowing SWMHs to be replaced. 31 

 32 

Fabian Knizacky stated he was part of the discussion 15 years ago that created the 33 

policy requiring a dwelling to be 24’ wide.  He still agrees with the current policy.  34 

 35 

Fabian Knizacky made a motion to accept the BPDA committee’s recommendation to 36 

retain the current ordinance language regarding dwellings less than 24’ wide. Second 37 

by Janet Andersen. Motion carried, 6 yes, 2 no (Hooper, Shineldecker). 38 

 39 

Tom Hooper made a motion to send the proposed ordinance amendments to public 40 

hearing with one modification to remove the proposed amendment allowing for 41 

replacement of dwellings less than 24’ wide. Second by Doug Robidoux. Motion carried, 42 

8 yes 0 no. 43 

 44 

Cary Shineldecker stated that requiring a fee for camping on someone’s own property 45 

penalizes honest people.   46 

 47 



 5

Mary Reilly asked for input on the format of the public hearing.   1 

 2 

Cary Shineldecker and Doug Robidoux supported a presentation on the amendments 3 

followed by a hearing. 4 

 5 

Mike Shaw stated he likes the idea from the BPAD Committee’s draft minutes regarding 6 

an access road between Wal-Mart and Meijer.  Mike Shaw added he would like to see a 7 

non-motorized trail to go with the access road. 8 

 9 

Zoning Directors Report:  Mary Reilly is working on a site plan for Habitat for Humanity. 10 

Ms. Reilly will keep the Planning Commission updated on information for the public 11 

hearing. Consumers Energy issue is in court (regarding the Settlement) and oral 12 

arguments are on January 23.  Benedict’s has decided to follow the agreed upon site 13 

plan rather than amending the site plan. 14 

 15 

Zoning Board of Appeals: Cary Shineldecker stated ZBA revoked an approval for a 16 

substitution of a non conforming use after the applicant chose not to follow the 17 

guidelines set by the ZBA in order to operate a demo-derby car workshop on US-10.  18 

 19 

Jim Wincek opened public comment.  20 

 21 

Public Comment: Evelyn Bergaila thanked Mike Shaw for thinking of the pedestrian path 22 

if the access road between Wal-Mart and Meijer happens. Ms. Bergaila noted that 23 

providing low-income housing was the compelling argument presented by the 24 

Townships for allowing the replacement of a SWMH.  The County needs to give thought 25 

to low-income housing to address these concerns.  26 

 27 

Meeting adjourned at 8:17 PM.    28 

 29 


